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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TK Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TK Toll Road Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of QOther Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (bereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements").

I our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generaily accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, its losses including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA"} specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial

Statements,
Uncertainty Related to Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 36 of the Financial Statements which indicates that the Company
has incurred a net loss 379.57 Million during the year ended March 31, 2023 and as of date the
current ljabilities exceed the current Assets by Rs. 3304.89 Million. This indicate that
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue ag-gouse-
concern. However, the Statement of the Company has been prepared on going concernfiasis

the reasons stated in the said Note.

Unit No 122, 1st Floor, Nahar & Seth Industrial Estate, Cardinal Gracious Rd, Chakala, Andheri (), Muiitssr468059.

% +91 22 4608 3939 / 4608 3940 \?f mpmbai@mkps.m %@& www.mkps.in
Also at: New Delhi, Bengaluru, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Raipur, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Sambalpur, Rourketa

s S e e e A S




& ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report and shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report.

We have nothmg to report in this regard.

Management Respmlsibili.tymfdr the Financial Staten'ié'l'i'ts

The Company's Boa; d of Birectors is responsible for the matterq stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act, with Iespecl to the preparation of these I“manual Slatements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Posmon Financial Performance mciudmg Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the. Statemcnt of Changes in Equity ‘of the Commny' in Aaccordance with the Ind AS
and other accountmg principies generally accepled in India. :

This 1esponsnb11:ty also inciudes ma:nt(,nance of adeguate accounting records in accordance

with the provision of the Act for safeguar dmg the assets of the Comp_ y_and for preventing and
detecting fr auds and other irregular mes, selection and ‘1;)}}]1cali6n of the appropriate
accounting pohmes makmg }udgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, m]plementatlon and mamtenance of adequate internal ﬁnanciallcontrols that were
operating effectively for ensur ing the accuracy and completeness of the accountlng records,
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are cofiSilagat
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accerdance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risl of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal controi refevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls s stem [n place and the aperating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude ol
accounting ‘and, based on the audit evidence ‘obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that'may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a'material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our.auditor’s report to th related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the dateof our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

1:the appropriateness of management’s use ‘of the going concern basis of

going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall ‘presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasenably knowledgeable user of
the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in:

i.  planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of cur work; and
il. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal contro! that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with_them ali
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refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Grder,

to the extent applicable.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appcal s from our exqmmation ofthose books;

¢) The Balance Sheet Statement of Plo{“t and Loss nmludmg Other Comprehensive Income,
the Stdtcﬂl&ﬂt of Cash Flows and Statement - ‘of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are !Il agl eement witl the books oi"accou nt; -

d} Inour opmlon the aforesaid financial statements compl v ith the accounting standards

specified undel section 133 of the Act; .

e) The Mattor described in Uncer ramty lelated to Going Conce: n section above, in pur
opmlon may have an adverse 1mpact on the functioning oflhe company,

f) On the basm ‘of written lL[)IeseIllathilS received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the dlrecto;s is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from bemg appomted as a director in terms of secuon 164(2) of the

Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

and as represented by the management:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2023 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Referd¥oteao:gd of
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the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 40 to the financial statement ne funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premiwm or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly iend or invest in other
persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”).or provide any guarantee, security or
the hk(, on behalf of the Ultimate Beneﬁc:aries

(b). Management has represented to us that,’ to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 40.to the financial statement no funds lLiave
‘been received by the Company. from any p'erson(f;} or entity(ies), inciuding
.f;:f01 eign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the undersmlldlng, whether recorded
;_ :_1:w1n1ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
Jdend or invest in other persons or entities ‘identified in any manner
"-'whatsoevel by or on behalf of the Funding Party {* ltimate Beneficiaries”) or
provlde any guarantee,. secumy or the like on b'ehalf of the Ultimate

Benef”c:anos

(c) Based on our audlt pl ocedule conducted that are consldered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that
cause us to believe that the representation given by the management under
paragraph (2) (i} (iv) (2) & {b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E |

Marendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN:23065025BGRDLR9343

Place :Mumbai
Date :Aprii 26,2023
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPDRT[ONERHED RCANCIMLTANTS
STATEMENTS OF TK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED.

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of

audit, we state that:

i (a) (A} The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting reguirements under this sub-clause is not

applicable.
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its

intangible assets.

(b) In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting
requirements under this sub-clause is not applicable.

(¢}  There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (¢) of clause
{i} of par agr <1ph 3’ ofthe order are not ap;}llcabie

(d) As cxplamed to us, the company has not Ievalued any of its Intangible assets
durmg the year. - :

(e) Accm ding to the information and expianattons pr ovlded to us and on the basis of
our ‘examination of the records of: the company, we. 'epmt that no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pendll‘jg against the company as at
March 31, 2023 for holding any.benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Pr ohlbmon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made t '

ii) (a) Inour op;mon and acc01dmg to 1.]10 information and explanalmns given to us, the
company.does not carry any inventories. Hence, the 1eportmg requ;rements under
sub-clause (a) of clause (11) of paragraph 3 of the order are not appllmble

(b)  The company has not been sanctioned any working capital llmzts from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub- Llause (b)
of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

fif)  The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, Accordingly, the
reporting requirement of clause 3(iii)(a), (b).{c).(d},(¢) & {f) of the Order are not

applicable.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is
interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the
information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the
provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities
granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting requ1remenl:s~m\d\1

clause (iv} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,
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v} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently,
the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed thercunder are not applicable.

vi}  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have heen
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) (a}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable,

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in clause {a) above which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute except in respect of the following:

Name of Nature of Period for which Forum where Amount
the statute Dues the amount dispute is involved
related pending {in Rs.)
Finance Service Tax | October 2010 to | Bombay High 1,87,42,683
Act, 1994 September 2015 Court
viii) According to the information and explanations and representation given to us, there

are neo transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has heen
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) (a)  In our opinionand according to the information and explanations given and
books of accounts and records examined by us, the Company has defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings and in the payment of interest
thereon in respect of which the lender wise and age-wise break up is as
under: (refer Note no. 9(a)(2a) & (2b) to standalone financial statement)

Nature of | Name of |  Amount not paid on No. of days delay or
borrowing Lender due date {Rs. In unpaid
Millions)
Principal Interest | Principal Interest
Term Loan | Bank of India 185.69 61.50 1095 *
Canara Bank 636.42 80.19 1735 *
Corporation 388.41 2.20 1735 *
Bank
HFCL 58691 37.33 1735 *
108 325.27 - 1735 8
OBC Bank 259.81 0.21 1735 X
UCO Bank 388.39 0.00 1735 | , ok
Total 2,770.90 | 181.43 - )i




(x}

{xi)

{(xii):

(xiii}
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* As per the confirmation received from respectilieldh e pobdD i &EOMMM TANTS
additional interest charged by lenders has been accounted for as on 31 March,
2023,

(b}  Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
Institution or government or any government authority. {refer Note no. 9(a)

{1} (ix) to the financial statement)

(¢} Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year.

{d}  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 923 Million have
been prima-facie being used for fong term purposes during the year,

(e)  The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e} of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(fy  The company: does not have any subs;c_h_cu y, joint venture or associate and
hence. ‘the ‘reporting lequnemems under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of

_pazagraph 3 of the order are not appllcable '-

_The Company has not raised money by way of initiai public offer oy further
public offer (including debt: mstluments) ‘and hence clause (x)(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applacable to the Compdny

(b}~ During the year, the Company has not made "a__l_ly referential allotment of
“.:shares or fully or partly-or optionally conver tible ‘debentures and Hence
~.reporting under c}auae (x)[b) of paragraph 3 of the Ord(,r is not applicable to

:"-the Company

(a) Bas‘cd on the aud;t pI ocedulcs performed for the pur_p_ose of reporting the
true and fair - view of the financial statements and as per information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has

been noticed or reported during the year,

{b) During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by
us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
{xii} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 and section
177 of the Act and their details have been disclosed in the financial staterments, etc.,

as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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the Company has an internal andit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued til)
date, for the period under audit for the purpese of planning our audit

procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act,

(xvi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

~(b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934,

_ pinion, and accor: dl'ng to the meI mation and explanations provided
to us, ‘the Company is not a Core !nvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the
' egulations made hy the Reserve Bank of !ndm

()

s represented by the management the gr oup ‘does not have more than one
ore investment company (CIC) as part of the; group as per the definition of
“group contained in Core Investmem Compames {Reserved Bank) Directions,

}2016

(d}_ _.

(xvii) In our «opinion, and acco;dmg to .:the information and exp}anat!ons provided to us,
Company has not incurred any- ‘cash losses in the current financial year and in the
mnnediately prccedmg fmancral year,

{xviii)  There has been. no. res;gnatlon of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are nat applicable to the

Company.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting and the various conditions
specified under paragraph “Uncertainty related to Going Concern” above, which
indicates and causes us to believe that uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that the Company is capable of meeting all its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.
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(xx} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, The Cerporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under
section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xx) (a) & {b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

- )Iarendra Khandal
Partner
Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDLR9343

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORA ONF RIFD BINANTINLTANTS
STATEMENTS OF TK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internai financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statement of TK ToH Read Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control ever financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering -the essential components of internal contro! stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of: Internal* Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Cln:te:e' Accoumants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities mclud(, the design, :mplementatmn and maintenance of adequate internal
financial contr QIs that were operating effectlvely for ensﬁrmg the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's: poilmes the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of fr auds. and errors, the ; accuracy and completeness of
the accountmg";recmde and the timely prepa: ation of Iellable financial information, as

required undes he Act,

Auditor’s Respniisibility

Cur 1espons;hli1ty is. to express an opmlon on the Company's mlernal § 1nanc1a! controls over
financial reporting ‘with reference. to these financial statements based -on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accoxdance with the Guidance Note issued by 1CAE'and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial! controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate toprayide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial contr 015 SV SEEis oy
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made oniy in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Intemai l*manmal Lontroh Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Fi =

Because of the inher m-llmltatzons of internal ﬁnanc;al controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, mcludmg the possibility of collusion or improper
management oy ride of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected Also, projections of any evaluation ofthe_ nt(,mai financial controls over
financial repor hg with reference to these financial statements" o future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control oy er financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may become madequate'because of changes:in conditions, or that the
degree of comph' nce with the policies or p ocedur es may deter:

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our mfol matlon and according to the expianatjons given to us, the
Company has, in ail matenal respeclq an adequate internal financial” cont;o]s system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

XMarendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.; 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDLR9343

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023




TK Tolt Road Private Limited
CIN: U45203MH2007PTC169208
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Rs. Millions
Particulars As at As at
Note March 3%, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Concession Intangible assets 4 §,801.93 6,030.85
{b} Current Tax Assets (Net) 2.78 0.58
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 26c 0.40 85.66
Total Non-Current Assets 5,805.09 &117.10
Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
(iy Cash and cash equivalents 5a 201.79 101.74
{ii) Other financial asset 5b 13.00 22.88
{b) Other current assefs 8 13.10 14.66
Total Current Assets 227.89 139.28
Total Assets 6032.98 6,256,38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7 127.56 127.56
{b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 8a 2,150.40 2,150.40
(¢) Other equity ab {167.32} 212,25
Total Equity 2,110.64 2,490.21
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 9a - -
(b} Provisions 12b 0.08 .00
Total Non-Current Liabilities 0.08 0.00
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabifities
{i) Borrowings ab 2,844.24 2,.844.05
{ii} Trade payables 10
{A} Total outstanding due of micro enterprises
& small enterprises w .
(B) Tetai cutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises & smal enterprises 143.39 66.67
(i} Other financial liabilities 11 543.25 459.06
{b) Provisions i2a 389.48 395.39
{c) Other current liabilities 13 1.90 1.00
Total Current Liahilities 3,922.26 3,766.16
6,032.98 6,256.38

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our altached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

arendra Khandal)
Membership Number : 085025
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board/

Sandeep Joshi
DiN no ; 08586595
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

-

SHailendra H Jain
DIN ne : 06393281
Ditactor




TK Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: U45203MH2007PTC169208

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs.Millions
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note  yiorch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations 14 544.37 457 .59
Other income 15 4.86 0.04
Total Income 549.23 457.63
Expenses

Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 215.96 115.97

Employee benefils expense 17 6.77 5.62

Finance costs 18 360.85 327.58

Amortization expense 4 228.92 194.22

Other expenses 18 30.12 37.09
Total expenses 842,62 680.48
Profit / {loss} before tax {293.39) {222.85)
Tax expense

Deferred tax chargef{credit) 85.49 96.37

Income tax for earlier years - .10
Profit/{Loss) for the year {378.88) (319.32)
Other Comprehensive income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profitioss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans : Gains / (Loss) (0.93) 213
- Income tax reiating to above ' (0.24} 0.55
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) {0.69) 1.58
Total Comprehensive Income /{Loss) (379.57) {317.74)
Earnings/{loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Basic & Diluted 34 (29.70) (25.03)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 302014E

arendra Khandal)
Membership Number : 065025
Partrer
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 28, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Sandeep Joshi shailendra H Jain
DIN no ; 09586595 DEN no : 06393281
Director Director—~
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aprit 26, 2023




TK Toil Road Private Limited

CiIN: U45203MH2607PTC169208
Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/{foss) before tax
Adjustriients for:
Amortisation expenses
Interest income
Finance Cost
Provision of Leave encashment
Excess Provision of Grafuily written back
Provision for resurfacing expenses

Cash Generated from Operations before
working capifal changes
Adjustments for:

{Increaselfdecrease in financial assets except for investments

{(increase)decrease in other current assels
Increasef{decrease) in trade payables
Increasef(decrease) in provision
Increase/{decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increasef{decrease} in cther current liabilifies

Cash generated from operations
Taxes (paid) net of refunds
Net cash generated trom operating activities - [A)

B8 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/Sale proceeds of intangible assets
Interest received

Net cash (used in} f generated trom investing activities - {8}

¢ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid

MNet cash used in financing activities - [}

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C]

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts
Cash on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalents [ Refer Note 5({a)}

Rs.Millions
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{293.39) {222.85)
228.92 194.22
{1.54) {0.03)
360.85 32758
0.14 0.06
(0.15) {0.01)
{17.65) 49.01
277.18 347 .98
9.88 (7 BA)
1.56 {0.19)
76.72 {16.37)
{1.00) 2.08
15.52 0.78
0.91 (0.42)
103.59 {21.99)
380.77 325.99
(2.05) 0.12
378.72 326.11
- 1.96
1.54 0.03
1.54 1.99
{280.21) {281.14)
{280.21) (281.14)
100.05 46.95
101.74 38.98
201.79 101.74
201.69 101.61
0.0 0.13
201.79 101.74

The balance in current account with banks of Rs. 201.69 million (Rs. 101.61 million} lying in Escrow account with bank held

as security against borrowings.

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, *Statement of Cash

Flows'.

Refer Note 28 - Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A 10 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

As per our attachad report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No., 302014E

ANarendra Khandal)
Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Sandeep Joshi Shhilendra H Jain
Director Dirkotor
DIN no : 09586595 DlN\nO - 05393281

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 28, 2023




TK Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: U45203MH2007PTC 169208
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs Milions

Balance at the

Changes in

Balance at the

Particulars beginning of | equity sha.re end of the year
the year capital during
the year
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 127.56 - 127.56
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 127.56 - 127.56
B. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT (In nature of equity) Rs.Miflions
Balance atthe | Changes in Balance at the
beginning of | equity share | end of the year
the year capital during
the year
For the year ended 37st March, 2077 2,150.40 - 2,150.40
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 2,150.40 - 2,150.40
C. OTHER EQUITY Rs.Miftions
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Retained Total
Premium Earnings
Reserve
Balance at April 07, 2021 1,337.14 (807.15) 522.99
Profit /{Loss) for the year (319.32)(- 319.32
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 1.58 1.58
Totai comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year - (317.74) (317.74)
Balance at 31st March, 2022 1,337.14 {1,124.89) 212.25
Balance at April 01, 2022 1,337.14 {1,124.89) 212.28
Profiti{l.oss) for the year (376.88) (378.88)
Other Comprehensive fncomef{Loss) for the year {0.69) (0.69)
Total comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year - (379.57) (379.57)
Balance at 31st March, 2023 1.337.14 (1,504.46} (167.32)

As per our report of even date attached

For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

arendra Khandal)
Membership Number ; 065025
Partner
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

For and on bhehaif of the Board

Sandeep Joshi

DIN no : 09586595

Director
Place: Mumbai

Shailbndra H Jain

DIN nl : 06393281

Sirector

Date: April 26, 2023




TK Tol Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate information

TK Toll Road Private Limited {“the Company”) was incorporated on March 26, 2007, has been awarded
oh Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, strengthening of the existing carriageway from Km. 138.80 to
Km, 218, on the Trichy - Karur section of National Highway No. 67 in the State of Tamil Nadu and
widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improvement, operation and maintenance through a concession on
Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis under the concession agreement dated July 19, 2007, with
National Highways Authority of India. The concession agreement is for a year of 30 years from January

158, 2008, being the appointed date.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility will be transferred to NHAL

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 26, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private iimited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre,19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Acl) {Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other refevant provisions of the Act, These Financia! Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
lit of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for ceriain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ~ Millions, except where otherwise indicated.
The financial statemenls have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the information and

disclosures mandated by Schedule ! to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
regulations. '

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is;
= Expecied to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= [xpected to be realised within tweive months after the reporting period, or
*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lizbifity for at least

welve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= ltis expected to be setifed in normal operating cycle

= Itis due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= There is no unconditional right to defer the seltlement of the Habllity for at leas! twelve months after

the reperting period

-

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities.

\




TK Toli Road Private Limited
Notes fo Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified fwelve months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

33

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional statements

are presented in Indian Rupees (), which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to seil the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liahility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair vzlue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market padicipants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seliing it to another market
participant that would use lhe assel in lts highaest and bast use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumsiances and for which sufficient
data are available o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuis and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant {o the fair vaiue measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabitities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly ochservahle
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Stalements on a recurring basis, the
Company defermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to 1he fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instrumenis and unqueted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabiiities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of asseis and fabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabifity and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair vaiue. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Bisclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumplions of Financial instruments
(inciuding those carried al amortised cost {note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement




TK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

hierarchy (note 22).

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recoghized up on transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services,

Toll revenue

The income from toli revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.

Effective from Aprii 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as at April 1,
2018. In accordance with the cumulative caich-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. There was no impact on adoption of ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Others

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and foss only when the right to feceive payment is
established.

Accounting of intangibie assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Tell Road Concession rights where it Builts, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire usefu! life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible assef
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset modet is used when the Company has an unconditional contractuat right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component. if the Company performs more than one service (i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivabie is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services

deiivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The infangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred o acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected {olt
revenue which reflecls the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
totaf tol! revenue is hased on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 24 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractuaily guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resuiting from application of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading “Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of invesiment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residua) balance is recognized under the Intangible

assef model.




TK Toil Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.6

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights 1o the

financiai asset expire.
Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the infrasfructure asset in
cperationai condition except for any enhancement efement) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement, The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the fiability.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax faws used 1o compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporling date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating fo items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statemenl of Profif and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to sifuations in which applicable tax regulations are subject fo interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is a
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a)has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b}intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

Peferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabifities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.
Deferred tax fiabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assels are recognized for unused tax losses fo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be utilized.,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient faxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporing date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits wil allow the defarred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liabflity is setfied, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted af the reporiing date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehengivé iicome or directly




TK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.7

3.8

39

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred fax liabilities are offset if a legafly enforceable right exists to set off
current fax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate o the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atftributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily {akes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capilalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

Leases

Qperating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
fine basis over the lease term.

Contingent Habilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the cccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertatn future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation thal is not recognised because il is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required fo setile the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
liahility is not recognised in the bhooks of accounts but ifs existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resuit of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expecls some or all of a provision fo be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liakility. When discounting s used, the increase in
the provision due fo the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits

(i} Short term obligations

liabiiities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the rejated service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftled. The liabilities are presenied as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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(ii} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its empioyees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes inte account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be avaited, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as currenf where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liabiiity are based on actuarial estimates.

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(@) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund,

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period fess the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by independent actuaries

using the projected unit credit method.

The present vaive of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to marke! yieids at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the relaled obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit abfigation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in aciuariai
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Fquity and in the

balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
Iregt,rlataorls The Company has no further payment obiigations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contriibution plans and the contributions are
Irecogruzed as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
.as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

I H

3.13 Cég;h and cash equivalents

(,as.h and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term
r.leposns with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Forthe purpose of the Statement of Cash Fiows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Company's cash management.
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3.14 Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise {0 a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of finandial assets not recorded at fair
vaive through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost fo the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

* atamortised cost
*  at fair value through profit or Ioss (FVTPL)
* gl fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractuat

cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount oufstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the l.oans and other receivables under financial
assets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not guoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective interest Rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is caiculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on gequisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to foans and other

receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are heid for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such efection on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

i the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCE then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income, There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (QCI) to the Staterment of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or foss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ali changes recognized in the

Stalement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognifion

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financia}
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without materal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of the
asset, or {b) the Company has heither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards.of the
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asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and te what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liabitity. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations thaf the Company has retained.
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVYOC!. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subjecl to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model:
*  Loans receivables measured at amortised cost

v Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHAI

= Loans given to employees
The impairment methodology for each class of financiai assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be fow risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expecled credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given fo employees outstanding as on the reporiing dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
of receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methedoiogy the Company has assessed that no ioan loss aliowance needs 1o be

recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (ECLY) impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assefs measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an aliowance, i.e., as an inlegral pari of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carying amourt. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment aflowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financiat liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, lvans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

Al financial fiabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financiat liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis and olher payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financiat liabilities are subsequently
measured al amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is caiculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.15

3.8

{i}

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of inferest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payabie are classified as current liabllities if payment is due within
one year or iess {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if jonger). If not, they are prasented as

non-current liahilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially af fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortization process.
De-recognition

A financial liabllity is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires, YWhen an existing financial liabflity is replaced by another from the same jender on stbstantially
different terms, or the ferms of an existing liabifity are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new fiability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabfiities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceabie legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an infention fo
setfle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settie the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocale the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. # is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
helieved to be reascnable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuiting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are

disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to tolt roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix D of Ind AS 115 ‘Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for pubfic-to-private service
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concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would pariicipate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the tolf roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to Nationai Highway Authorities of india (NHAI).

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 'Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement'.

(ii) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses o the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
laxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

(iii} Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits.

(iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expenditure)

3.17

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the presenl value of the expected fulure payments. The
calculations to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of
expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") naotifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements ~This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or afler 1st April 2023,

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ~This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption
so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 4 - Concession intangible assets Rs.Milions

. : Toll Collection
Particulars .
rights

Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 6,971.00
Additions " -
Adjustments/Disposals .

Closing gross carrying amount 6,971.00

Accumulated !amortisation and impairment

Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 745.93
amortisation i'cr?arge for the period 194.22
Disposals ' -

l 1
Closing accumuiated amortisation and impairment 840.15
Net carrying.;am'ount 6,030.85

Year ended WMarch 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 6,871.00
Additions ;- -
Adiustments/Disposals -

|
Ciosing gross carrying amount 6,971.00

Accumulatec; amortisation and impairment

Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 940,15

amortisation charge for the period 228.92

Disposals ‘ .

Closing accu;nlu!ated amortisation and impairment 1,169.07

Net carrying amc’:;unt 5,801,93
|

Note : L

a) The above intangible Asset are pledged as security with Lenders.

b} No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Therefore
the disclosure of details of Benami Property held is not applicable. o
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Rs.Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current

Note § {a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks
~ in current accounts

Cash on hand

Note 5 {b) - Other financial assets - current

Retention money receivable from NHAI
Other Receivables
Claims receivable from NHAI

Note 6 - Other Current assets

Advance to vendors
Advance to employees
Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivabie
Gratuity Advance

201.69 101.61
0.10 .13
201.79 101.74
1.65 1.65
3.48 3.60
7.87 17.63
13.00 22,88
0.45 0.48
0.27 0.24
2.73 2.58
6.32 7.71
3.33 3.65
13.10 14.66
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Note 7 - Share Capita}

Particulars

Shares

Note 7a - Authorised Equily Share Capital
At the beginning of the year

Add : Increase during the year
At the end of the year

Note Tb - Issued, subscribed and pafd-up equity
share capial
At the beginning of the year

Add : increase during the year
At the end of the year

Nete 7¢ - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

1,60.00,000
of Rs 10 each

1,27,55,650
of Rs 10 each

s Milions

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 34, 2022

166,00 160.00
160.08 160.00
127.56 127.56
127.56 127.58

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/~ In the event of liquidation of the company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after dislibution of afl preferential amounts, The

clistribiilion will be in proportion o the number of equity shares heid by the shareholders.

Hote 7d - Reconcifiation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares ai the beginning of the year
Add  Nos of Shares issued during the year

Nos of Shares at the end of the year

Note 7e - Shares held by the holding
Company or their subsidiartesfassociates

Reliance Infrastruclure Limited (Holding Company) & its nominees

Note 7f - Detgils of Sharehotders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Retiance Infrastructure Limited
Nos of Shares
% of holding

Note 79 - Details of Shares held by promoters

1,27,5%5,650 127,655,650
1,27,56,650 1,27,55,650
1,27,56,650 1,27,55,650
1,27,55,650 1.27,55,650
100% 100%

Promoter's Name

Mo. of shares

% of total shares

% change during the

Reliance Infrastructure bimiled

1,27,55,6850

100%

0%

Note 7h - Number of Shares Pledged,Safekeen and Unpledged by the Promotors : -

Particulars As at 31st March 2023{As at 31st March 2022
Pledged 38,26,695 38,26,695
Safekeep 24,23,574 24,23,574
Unpledged 65,05,381 65,05,381
Total 1,27,55,650 127,65 650
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As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 8a - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of equity)

 Equity
At the beginning of the year 2,150.40 2,150.40
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
At the end of the vear 2,150.40 2,150.40
Note Ba (i) - Sub-ordinate Debts infused by the holding
Company or their subsidiaries/associates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) 2,150.40 2,150.40

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by holding company

i) Subordinated debt is the part of holding companys Equity from the promoters of the company for the project, which

is unsecured and interest free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders;

i} No repayment/redemption/interest servicing allowed during the moratorium year of the long term project loan.

Note Bb- Other Equity & Reserve

Retained Earning {1,504.46) {1,124.89)

Security Premium Account 1,337.14 1,337.14
(167.32) 212.25

Note 8b - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the year (1,124.89) (807.15)

Net Profit/(loss) for the year {378.88) {319.32)

Iterns of other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained earnings

- Remeasuremens of post-employements {0.69) 1.58
obligations {net of tax)

Dividends paid during the period - -

At the end of the vear {1,504.45) {1,124 89}

Note 8c - Securities Premium Account

At the beginning of the year 1,337.14 1,337.14

Premium on shares issued during the year - -
1,337.14 1,337.14

At the end of the year

Nature and purpose of securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to recorddbe premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisicns of the act.
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Rs.Millions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 9 {a) - Borrowings - Non current
Secured
Term loans

From banks
Rupee term loan

From financial institutions
Rupege term loan

Total

1) Secured Term L.oan from Banks & Financial Institutions of Rs. 2,770.89 million (Principal undiscounted amount)
are secured as under :

The Borrowings are secured by the way of terms stated in Common Loan Agreement entered between company and
Consortium of tenders which are as under:-

(i) a first ranking pari passu mortgage/charge over all the Borrower's immoveable and movabie properties, both present and
future, except the Project Assets. ;

(ii) a first ranking on receivables, book debts, cash and cash equivalents including any other bank accounts and other assets,
present and future.

(iil) a first ranking on government approvals, insurance policies, uncalied capital, project documents, guarantees, letter of

credit, performance warranties, indemnities, and securities given to the Company.
(iv) afirst ranking pari passu charge over / assignment of the right, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the

Borrower in, to and under any letter of credit, guarantees (except the guarantees issued in favour of NHAI) including contractor
guarantees and fiquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party o the Project Documents.

{v) The applicable interest rate for rupee term loan is $0.80% p.a.

(vi) Due to inability of company to repay the overdue amount of loans instaliments, Bank of India {Lender's} have stopped
charging monthiy interest respectively from date of classifying the account as NPA. However the company has been regular in
paying the interest amount on a monthly basis and the lenders has adjusted interest paid amount in principal outstanding, due
to which the loans outstanding balance as per lender's balance confirmation and as per books of accounts has not been

matched.

{vii) Further the Company is in discussion with its ienders for restructuring of their loans and is confident that the restructuring
plan would be approvedand difference in loan balance would get resolved upon restructuring.

(viii) Filing of the quarterly returns or statements of current assets is not applicable to the company.
(ix) } None of the Banks / FIl / other tenders has declared the company as wilful defaulter in accordance with guidelines on

wiiful defaulters issued by RBI. Hence wilful defaulter disclosure is not applicable
{x} No charges or satisfaction is pending to be registered with ROC beyound the statutery period

(Xi) The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are considered it note no.27

2} Waturity Profile of Secured Term Loan (Principal undiscounted) are as under :

Particulars l.oan from Banks l.oan from
Financial
- Institutions
TR
Principal Due 3 .. 2183.99 586.91
Total T 1218399 586.91
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2 a) The company has delayed in the payment dues to the( Principal }Banks & financial institution as at March 31,
2023, The lender wise details is as below :

Name of Lenders Principal As at March 31, 2023
{(maximum no of days}

Bank of India 185.69 1095

Canara Bank £36.42 1735
Corporation Bank 388.41 1735

HFCL. 586.91 1735

10B 32527 1735

OBC Bank 258 81 1735

uco 388.38 1735

Total 2,770.90

2 b) The company has delayed in the payment dues to the( interest JBanks & financial institution as at March 31, 2023,
The lender wise details is as below ;

Name of Lenders

interest

As at March 31, 2023

{maximum no of days}
L)

Bank of India 61.50

Canara Bank B80.18 *
Corporation Bank 2,20 *
IFCL 37.33 *
I0B - *
OBC Bank 0.21 *
uco 0.00 *
Total 181.43

* As per the confirmation received from respective lenders, penal interest and additional interest charged by fenders has been
accounted for as on 31st March, 2023.

Nate 9 (b} - Borrowings - Current

Secured

Current Maturities of long term debt {(Refe note 9(a) for security)

Unsecured
Loan from related parties

Note 10 - Trade Payables

Total outstanding due of micro enterprises & smail enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 3%, 2022

2,770.94 277075
73.30 73.30
2,844.24 2,844.05

As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Related 23.48 23.48
Others 119.91 43.19
143.39 66.67
a) Trade Payables ageing schedufe
As at 31st March, 2023 e .
Particulars Outstandirrrfor below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year [1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years |[Total

1) MSME - - - - -
2} Others 88.74 0.43 3.12 35.98 128.27
3) Dispufed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
5) Unbilled Dues - - - - 15.12
Total 88.74 0.43 312 36.98 143.39
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a) Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars

Qutstanding for below periods from date of transaction

Less than 1 Year [1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years |Total
1) MSME . - - - -
2) Others 14.54 0.81 6.27 31.96 53.58
3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - ~
5) Unbilled Dues - - - - 13.08
Total 14.54 0.81 6.27 31.96 66.67

¢} Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Disclosure of payable fo vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based

on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per
the intimation received from them on reguests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amountsfinterest
payabia amounte for defayad payments to such vendors al the Balancs Sheet date, There are o delays in payment made lo
such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no inferest paid or outstanding interest in this
regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Notfe 11 - Other financiaf liabilities - current

Interest due but not paid 181.43 112.74
Creditors for Capital expenditure 1564.19 154,19
Employee benfits payable 1.85 1.71
Retention money payabie (Refer foot note) 205.79 190.42
Total 543.25 459.06
Foot Note
Retention Money Payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year {1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years |Total
Retention Money Payable 15.98 1.37 0.68 187.76 205.79
Total 15.98 1.37 0.68 187.76 205,79
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year }1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years |Total
Retention Money Payable 1.95 0.71 - 187.76 190,42
Total 1.95 0.71 - 187.76 180.42

T
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As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 12 {(a) - Provisions - Current

Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity - -
- Leave encashment 0.00 0.02
Others
- Resurfacing expenses 389.48 395.37
389.48 395.39
Movement in provision during the financial year is set out as below:
Resurfacing provisions
At the beginning of the year 395.37 341.11
Charged / (credited) to profit or loss
Additional Provision recognised 122.49 49,01
Unwinding of discount 11.77 5.25
Amount utifised during the year (140.15) -
At the end of the year 389.48 395.37

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAI, the Company Group is obiigated to carry out resurfacing of the roads
under concession. The Company accrues the provision required towards resurfacing costin profit & ioss statement in
accordance with Ind AS 37 * Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Refer Note no. 3.5 maintenance

obligation

Note 12 (b} - Provisions - Non - Current

Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity
- L.eave encashment

Note 13 - Other current liahilities

Duties and taxes payable

As at
March 31, 2023

.08

As at
March 31, 2022

0.00

0.08

0.00

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1.90 1.00
1.90 1.00
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Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 14 - Revenue

Operating income

- Income from toil collections - Refer Note 34:2
Note 15 - Other income

interest income

- Others
Excess provision for Gratuity written back

Excess provision for expenses Encashment written back

Miscellaneous income

Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution fo provident funds and other funds
t.eave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

Interest on foan
Uinwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 19 - Other expenses

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration

-~ Audit Fees

Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscellaneous expenses

§44.37 457.59
544.37 457.59
0.15 0.01
3.17
1.54 0.03
4.86 0.04
13.53 30.02
198.09 82.24
3.95 2.89
- 0.01
0.39 0.81
215.96 11597
6.37 5.22
0.25 0.20
0.14 0.06
0.01 0.14
6.77 5.62
347.90 321.21
11.76 5.25
1.19 1.12
360.85 327.58
10.84 0.09
9.42 11.65
8.93 24.21
0.24 0.24
0.15 0.18
0.54 0.72
30.12 37.09
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Note 14 A - Details of Gross Toll Coliection & Revenue Share Rs.Millions
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Toll collection (gross) 562.79 473.05
Less: revenue share to NHAI 18.42 15.46
Toll collection (net) (A) ' 544.37 457.59
Toll collection for additional stretch as per

supplementary agreement with NHAI 21.98 18.45
Less: payment to NHAI 18.42 15.46
Toll collection charges (net) (B) 3.56 2.99
Income from toll collection (net of revenue

share) (A+B) 547.93 460.58
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements
Firancial Instruments by category
Signficance of financial instruments

Rs.Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial assets

At amortised Cost
Other Receivables
Retention Money receivable from NHAI
Cash and Cash equivalent
Claims receivable from NHA!

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

At amortised Cost
Borrowings
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
interest due but not paid
Employee Benefits Payabie
Creditors for capital expenditure

Total financial liabilities

3.48 3.60
1.65 1.65
201.79 101.74
7.87 17.63
214,79 124,62
2,844.24 2,844.05
143.39 86.67
206.79 190.42
181.43 112.74
1.85 1.71
164.19 154.79
3530.89 3369.78
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Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurements Rs.Millions
Financial liabilities
(a} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at As at As at
amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Level 3
Fioating Rate Borrowings 2770.94 2770.75
Retention money payable 205.79 180.42
2976.73 286117

Total financial liabilities

Recognised fair value measurements

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is

determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of abservable market data and rely as littie as possible on entity-

specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Levei 3. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is

the case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative included in fevel 3
Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific vaiuation techniques used to value financial instruments inciude:
* he use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

* the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance

sheet date
* the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(b} Fair Vatue of Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
As at

Particulars March 31, 2023

Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost

Rs. Millions
As at
March 31, 2021

Floating Rate Borrowings 2770.94 2770.75
Retention money payable 205.79 180.42
2976.73 2961.17

Fair value of financial liabilities Carried at amortised cost
Floating Rate Borrowings 2770.94 2770.75
Retention money payable 205.79 180.42
2976.73 296117

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest acerued on deposits, retention money receivable, insurance claim receivable,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, inferest accrued, employee benefits payabie and creditors for capital expenditure

approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.,

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounis are equal to the fair values.
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Note 22 - Financial risk management
The Company activities exposes it to market risk, fiquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising Measurement Management
from
Credit rigk Cash and cash Aging analysis Credit Diversification of bank
eqguivalents, trade ratings deposits, credit limits
receivabies, financial and letters of credit

assets measured at
amottised cosl.

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings Sensitivity analysis  Actively Managed
at variable
Rates
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other Roliing cash flow Availability of
tiabilities forecasts committed credit iines
and borrowing
facilities

The Company's risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team under poficies approved
by board of directors. Company reasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the
company's operating unite. The Management of the Company provides written principles for overall risk management, as wel}
as policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-

derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity,

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation (censtruction, operation and maintenance} of the projects, such as cement,
bitumen, steel and other construction materials, For which, the Company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC
contractor and O&M Contractor so as to manage our exposure to price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity

analysis is not required.

Market risk — inferest rate risk

The Bank toans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on
financials, the Company earn tofl income which is inked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a) interest rate risk exposure

Rs.Millions
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable Rate Borrowings 2,770.94 2,770.75
Fixed Rate Borrowings - -
Total 2,770.94 2,770.75

b) Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

: ¢ fi ft As at As at
mpact on profit/oss after tax March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points {23.39) (23.39)
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points 23.39 23.39

e
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Note 23 - Capital risk management

The company's objectives when managing capitai are o
safeguard their ability fo continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide

. returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capitai.

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premiun
sub-debts and all other equity reserves atiributable to the equily holders of the parent. The primary objective
the company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condition
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capitai structure, the company me
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinat
debt. The company monitors capital using & gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net deb
The company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The company includes within net debt, interest bearin
loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company's capital managemert, amongst other things, aims {
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capit:
structure reguirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ {(as shown in the balance sheet).

The company's strategy is to maintain a debt to equity ratio within 0 to 1.00The gearing ratios at March 31, 202!
and March 31, 2022 were as follows:

Rs.Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) 2,642.43 2,742.32
Equity (b) 2,10.64 2,490.21
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) 1.256 1.10
Rs.Millions
) As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) 2,642.43 2,742.32
Equity (b) 2,110.64 2,490.21
Nebt debt plus Equity {c = a+b) 4,753.09 5,232.563
0.56 - ~ 52

Gearing ratio {a) / ¢
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Note : 256 Related Party Transaction

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and trasnsactions with them in

the ordinary course of business are disclosed below

Holding Company
Reliance infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Shailendra H Jain - Director

Sandeep Joshi - Director - Appointed w.e.f 26th April 2022
Rajesh Das- Director - Resinged w.e.f 25th April 2022
Yogesh Jan -Chief Financiat Officer

Senthil Kumar Rajendra - Manager
Krisha Shah - Company Secretary - Appointed w.e.f 05th August 2022

Details of transactions and closing balance

Rs.Millions

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Transactions during the year :-
Balances at the year end :-

Inter-corporate deposit

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 73.30
Trade payabies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 23.48
Sub-debts (in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 2,150.40
Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 127.56
Guarantees issued on behalf of the Company and utilised

2,950.00

Relfiance Infrastructure Limited

(B) Key Management Personnel (KMP) and details of transactions with KMP :

During the year no payment was made to Key Management Personnet { KMP).

73.30

23.48

2,150.40

127.56

2,950.00




TK Tol Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 26: Income and deferred taxes
26(a} Income tax expense

Rs.Millions

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year

Profit from continuing operations

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 0.10
Total current tax expense - 0.10
Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 69.80 72.58
{Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 15.46 24.34
Total deferred tax expensel/(benefit) 85.26 96.92
Income tax expense B5.25 97.02
Income tax expense is aftributable to:

85.25 97.02

26(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Profit from operations before income tax expense (293.39) (222.85)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26.000% (76.28) (57.94)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Reverse/{created) of deferred Tax 85.25 97.02
Expenses disallowed and others 76.28 57.94
income tax expense charged to statement of Profit and Loss 85.25 97.02
26(c}) - Deferred tax {liability) / Asset
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to ;

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deffered tax liability on account of :

Intangible assets
Impact of effective interest rate on borrowings
Total Deffered tax Liabilities

Deffered tax asset on account of :
Unabsorbed losses

Provision for resurfacing expenses (MMR)
Retirement benefit obligation

Total Deffered tax Assets

Net deferred tax {liability)/asset

395.58 380.06

(0.041) 0.05
395.57 380.11
294.71 362.97
101.26 102.80
395,97 465.77

0.40 85.66
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26 {d) -Movement in deferred tax liability f asset

Rs.Millions
intangthle
Unused Tax assets - toll
Particulars
Losses collection Other items  Total
Right

As at April 01, 2024 449 65 {355.66) 88.5% 182 58
Chargedf{credited) during the year

to profi or foss (BG.EB) {24.40) 4.7 {86.37)

to other comprehensive income - - (0.55) (0.55)
As at March 31, 2022 L (380.08) 103.75  B5.66
Az at Aprit 01, 2022 362.87 {380.08} 10275 B5.6G
Chargedi(credited) during the year

Lo profit or loss (68.26) {16.52) (1.72) {85.50)

to other comprehensive income - - 0.24 0.24
As at March M, 2023 29471 (395.58) 101.27 0.40
Tax loss on which tax credit not recognised in Financial Statement

As at As at
Particutars March 31,
2023 March 31, 2022

Unused tax on business losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised 740.08 527.89
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Note 27 : Assets pledged as security

Rs.Millions

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivaients 5a 201.79 101.74
Other Financial Assets 5b 13.00 2288
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 7 13.10 14.66
Total current assets pledged as security 227.89 139.28
Non-current
First charge
intangible Asset 4 5,801.93 6,030.85
QOther non current assets G - -
Tolal non-current assets pledged as security 5,601.93 6,030.85
Total assets pledged as security 6,029.82 6,170.14

Note 28 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A fo 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

Year Ended March  Year Ended March

Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Long term Borrowings
Opening Balance 2,770,756 2,770.63
- Non Current - -
Avaited during the year - -
Changes in Fair Value

- Impact of Effective Rate of interest 0.18 0.12
Less ; Repayment During the year -
Closing Balance 2,770.93 2,770.75
Short ferm Borrowings
Opening Balance 73.30 73.30
Add ; Availed during the year -
Less : Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance 73.30 73.30
Sub-ordinated debt {(in nature of equity)
Opening Balance 2,150.40 2,150.40
Add : Availed during the year - -
Less : Repaid During the year - -
Closing Bafance 2,150.40 2,150.40
Interest Expenses
Opening Balance 112.74 71.67
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 360.85 327.58
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of interest {0.18} {C.12)
- Unwinding of Discount on provigions {11.76) (5.25)
- Unwinding of Discount on retention money - -
interest paid to Lenders {280.21) (281,14}

181.43 112.74

Closing Balance
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Note 29 : Liquidity risk - Tabie Rs.Millions
The table below analyses the company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-setiled derivative
financiaf liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date
fo the contractual maturity date, Derivative financiat liabilities are included in the analysis i their contractual

maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at March 31, 2023 Less than1 More than 1 Total

year year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 2,770.94 - 2,770.94
interest on horrowings 225.20 - 225.20
Trade and other payabies 143,38 - 143.39
Other financial iiahilities 361.83 361.83
Total non-derivatives 3,501.36 - 3,501.26
As at March 31, 2022
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 2,770.75 - 2,770.75
interest on borrowings 156.51 - 156.51
Trade and other payables 66.67 - 66.67
Other financial liabilities 346,32 - 346,32
Total non-derivafives 3,340.25 - 3,340.25
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Note 30 -Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
Rs.Millions

a) Defined contribution pfan _
The foliowing amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and foss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no

other obfigations other than the contribution payable to the respective aulhorilies.

. As at As at
Particufars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund and olher funds 0.25 0.20

Total 0.25 0.20

a) Defined benefit ptan
The company bas a defined benefit plan (Gratuity} for its employees. The gratuity pian is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefil. The leve! of benefils provided depends on the
member's length of service and salary al relirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gefs a grauity on
depariure at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for each compieted year of service as per the provision of the Paymenl of Gratully Act, 1972
wilh fotal ceiling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuity plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheel and the movements in the net defined benefit cbligation
over the year are as follows:

oul As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present Vatue of Benefit Gbiigation at the beginning of the year 0.78 0.59
Interest Cost 0.04 0.03
Current Service Cost 0.06 0.07
Benefit Paid Direclly by the Employer - 0.46
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses arising on account of demographic assumptions 002 - 0.00
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses arising from change in financial assumptions - 0.05 0.03
Acluarial (Gains)/l.osses arising on account of experience 1.60 (.06
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 1.38 0.78
Change in the Fair Vafue of Plan Assots
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 4.44 219
Interest Cost / {income) on plan asset 0.25 0.1
Return on plan assets, excluding amound inchuded in interest expense/(income) 0.03 2.23
Fair Value of Pian Assets at the end of the year 4.72 4.44
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of Benefit Obligation al the end of the year {1-39) (0.78}
Fair Value of Plan Assets al the end of the year 4.72 4.44
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit) ) 3.33 3.65
Not {Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 3.33 3.65
Net Assets is bifurcated as follows:
Current 3.33 3.65
Non Current - -
Totai 3.33 3.65
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period
Current Service Cost 0.08 0.07
Net interest Cost {0.21) (0.08)
Expenses Recognized {015} - .01
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCH) for Current Pariod
Actuarial (Gains)l.osses arising on Obilgation for the period 0.96 0.0%
- 2.23

Return on plan assets, exciuding amount included in inlerest expense/(income) {0.03}

Change in Asset Ceiling
Net {Income) /Expense For the Period Recognized in OCH 0.93 (2,13}
W
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Particutars

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets {p.a.)

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

Mortality pre-retirement

A quantitalive analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Particulars

Assumpfions -Discount rate
Sensilivity Level

impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease

Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensilivity Leve!

impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
tmpact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease

The {able below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits

the employees as at the vaiualion date:

Particulars

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Between 2 and 5 years
Belween 6 and 10 years
For and Beyond 11 years
Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting

period

Plan Assets Composition

Particulars

Non Quoted
Insurer Managed Funds

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

7.29% 5.66%

7.29% 5.66%

8.00% 8.00%

Indian Assured Lives tndian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality

{2012-14) {2006-08)

As at
March 34, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

100 bp
-2.03%
2.16%

100 bp
2.13%
-2.04%

100 bp
4.75%
1.89%

100 bp
1.83%
1.73%

ta be paid 10 the current membership of the plan based on past service of

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
WMarch 31, 2022

0.24
1.04
0.25
.13
1.66

8 years

0.44
.24
0.13
0.07
0.88

4 years

As at
March 31, 2023

As af
March 31, 2022

4.72

4.44

4.72

4.44
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Note 3% - Contingent liabifities

As at As at
Particutars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

1. Claims againstthe company nof acknowledged &s debls and under ihgation
Income Tax Claim

2.FasTag Penaily : -The company has been ceilecting penalty from the users for using FasTag lanes without valid FasTAG, the
same has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is not payable to
NHAI notwithstanding the demands from NHAL The aggregate amount of penaity collected and appropriated under Income for
March 2023 is Rs.13.53Million (For March 2022 is Rs.19.38 Million)

3.Independent Engineers/ NHAI have issued various communication to the company purportedly towards default in meeting the
maintenance obligation of the company and consequential penally on account of the same. The company has confesied the
same and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in the financial statements

4.There are numerous interpretative issues relating {0 the Supreme Court {SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2019 on
Provident Fund (PF) on the inctusion of alfowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicabitity of effective
date. The Company has evaluating and there is no material impact on #s financlal stalement. The Company, in respect of the
above mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possible but nof probable that oulfiow of econormic

resources will be required,

5.The indirect 1ax autherities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated that the Company was not eligible to avail
CENVAT credit as there was no outpul service liable to tax. The depariment issued an order in April 2016 demanding interest
on the CENVAT credit availed for period Qctober 2010 to March 2012 and penalty on account of wilful suppression of facls. The
Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appeliate Tribunal. The tribunal has set aside the said adjudication
order against which department has now gone in appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbat,

Note 32 - Arbitration Claims by the company

EPG Contractor has raised claims against the Company under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose due
to events attributed 1o NHAIL The claims were scrutinized by the Company and after due dsiiberations, it is agreed between the
Company and the EPC Contractor that the claims shail be referred to NHAI for consideration.

Accordingly the Company along with its cfaims, submilted the claims of the EPC Contractor to NHAI for consideration. The
claims went through the Dispute Resolution procedures of the Concession Agreement including the amicable settlement
between the two Chairmen of NiHAI and the Company and Conciliation. However no setllement could be arrived at between
NHA! and the Company. The Company has accordingly referred the Dispules/claims to arbitration.

On 01.10.2022, Award was pronounced by the Arbitral Tribunal. Majority Award amounting 1o Rs. 1034 or was passed by
Justice Retd. SK Singh & Justice Retd. Amitava Roy. TKTR has filed petition under Section 36 of Arbitration and Conciliation

Act, 1896 i.e. enforcement of the award on 6th Jan 2023,
NHA! has also fifed petition under Section 34 Arbilration and Conciliation Act, 1896 challenging the Award.

The EPC Contractor has agreed to awalt the outcome of the above proceedings before pursuing any further action on the
matter. It is agreed between the Company and the EPC Contractor thaf tilf such fime the abave proceedings between Company
and NHAl are concluded, no rights of the EPC Contractor with regard to Limitation on the claims will be affected. The Company
will update the EPC Contractor with regard to the status of above section 34 and 36 proceedings.

The Claims referred to NHAI by the Company, which have now become a matter of Dispute under the Concession Agreemant
amounts 1o Rs, 16017 .53 million which aiso includes the claim of the EPC Conlracter amounting 1o Rs. 5,546.79 miflion.

Note 33- The Company has received communication from NHAI for Cure Period Notice alleging breaches, which, iner alia,
include purporied non fulfillment of maintenance obligation by the company as per the requirement of Concession of
Agreement. The Company has contested the same and hence do net anticipale any such action by NHAI since i is in the

process of fulfilling the required obligation(s), wherever required. e
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Note 34 - Earning per share: Rs Millions
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 |} March 31, 2022

Proft / {Loss) attributable to equily shareholders (Rs Millions) (A} {378.88} {319.32)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per 1,27,55,650 1,27 55,650
share (B}

Earnings / (Logs) per share (Rasic and diluted) (Rupees) {A/B) {29.70) (25.03}
Nominai value of equity shares {Rupees) 10.00 10.00

Nate 35 - Segment Reporting :- The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastruclure Projects” which in {he context of Ind AS 108
"Operating Segment” is nonsidered as the only segment. The Company's activiies are reslricled within india and hence, no
separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Note 38- Going Concern;- The current liabiiities of the the company have exceeded Hs current assets. The company is
underaking a number of steps which will result in an improvement in cash flows and enable the company {o meet its financial
ohligations. There has also been improvement in the ravenues of the company and sucli ieveniugs have been sufficient to
recover the operating costs and the EBITA (Earnings before inlerest, Tax & Amortisafion} has been positive since the
commencement of the operations. Additionally, it enjoys fong concession period extending upto Y 2038 and the current cash
flow issues have occurred due 1o mismalch in the repayment schedule vis a vis the concession period.

Further the Company has succeeded in arbitration against NHAI leading to a favourable arbitral award of Rs. 588.3% crore
{principal amount) and pre-award and posl-award interest, which will further improve the financial position. The total Awarded
Amount as on March 31, 2023 is Rs 1138 Cr. NHA! has challenged the Award under section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation
Act, 1996 and no stay has been granted lo NHAI in the maiter. The matler is presently pending before Hon'ble Deihi High Court
(DHC). The company had filed execution petition under section 36 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1998 before Ho'ble DHC

for enforcement of the Award.

In accordance to NHAI circular dated May 05, 2020 pursuant to Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs {CCEA's) decisions for
revival of Construction seclor and NITI Aayog OM No 14070/14/2016, an amount of 75% of the awarded amount can be
released as interim payment against chailenged arbitral awards, by Government entities to contractors/concessionaires against
bank guarantee (BG). The Company is accordingly in discussions with its lenders for issuance of BG pan proceeds of which will

be utifized to repay its entire oulstanding fund based debt.

Netwithstanding the dependence on above said uncertain events, The company continues to prepare its financial. resulls on a
‘Going Concern’ basis.

Note 37- Foreign Currency Exposure
The company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency
Note 38- Events after reporting period

There are no subsequent event after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.
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Note 39 - Ratios

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % variance|Reason for varfance

1) Current ratio (afh} 0.20 014 41.45!Ratio improved mainly due to

Current Assels () 507 89 13558 increase in Cash Balances resuiting
i ] increase in Current Asseis.

Current Liability (b) $.151.33 995,41

2) Dabt Equity ratio {cid) 1.35 1.44 17.98

Det (c) 2,844.24 2.844.05

Equity (d) 2,110.64 2,490.21

3) Debt Service Coverage ratio { eff} 1.06 1.08 -0.53|Ratio improved mainly due to

EBITDA (8) 356,36 558,65 increase in EBITDA

Inlerest on Term Loan 280.21 281.14

Frincipai Repaymenl - -

Tolal interest & Principal Repayment (f) 28021 281.14

4} Return on Equity ratio (g/h) {0.16} (6.12) 26.63

Profit after Tax {g) {378.88) {319.32)

AverageShareholder's Equity (h) 2,300.43 2,649 08

5) Trade Payable Turnover ratio {if) 234 2.04 14.57

Net Credit Purchases (]} 246.08 153.07

Average Trade Payablef)) 108,03 74.85

6} Net Capltal Turnover ratio (kin) (0.69) (0.53) 10.2%,

Net Sales (k) 544 37 467.69

Current Assets {1} 227.89 139.28

Current Liabilities (m) 1,161.33 99541

Working Capital (n} {l-m} (923 44) (B56.12)

7) Net Profit ratio (£.70) (0.70) {0.26}

Profit after Tax {m) {378.88) (319.32)

Net Sales (k) 544,37 457 .69

8) Return on Capita! Employed (ofr} a.m 0.02 ~30.66] Ratio improved due 1o increase in toll

EBITA (0) o7 46 10453 revenue, resulling increase in
. ) operation profit during the year as

Net Worth (p) 2,110.64 2490.21 compare to fast year.

Total Debt {q) 2.844.24 2,844.05

Total Capilal Employed {') {p+q} 4,954 .88 5334.27

9} Rekirn on Investment NA, NA -

14] Inventaory Furnever Rato NA A -

11) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio NA NA -




TK Toll Road Private Limited

dotes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2023

Note 40

Other Statutory Information

(1} The company has no transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

{ii) The Company do not have any Capital-work-in progress or intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded ils cost
compared to its original plan,

{iii) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to an
understanding that the intermediary shall;

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the company (Ullimate Beneficiaries)

y other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entiies {Intermediarias) with the

{a) Directly or indirectly
or
(b) Provide any guaranies, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

(iv} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) thal the Company shafl:

(2) Directly or indirectly lend or inves! in ofher persons or eniities identified in an
Beneficiaries} or

{b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

y manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimale

Note 41 Details of Crypto currency or virtual Cureency

Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
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